EDINBURGH UNIVERSITY;
A SKETCH OF ITS LIFE
FOR 300 YEARS



Published @ 2017 Trieste Publishing Pty Ltd

ISBN 9780649025831

Edinburgh University; A Sketch of Its Life for 300 Years by Various

Except for use in any review, the reproduction or utilisation of this work in whole or in part in
any form by any electronic, mechanical or other means, now known or hereafter invented,
including xerography, photocopying and recording, or in any information storage or retrieval
system, is forbidden without the permission of the publisher, Trieste Publishing Pty Ltd, PO Box
1576 Collingwood, Victoria 3066 Australia.

All rights reserved.

Edited by Trieste Publishing Pty Ltd.
Cover @ 2017

This book is sold subject to the condition that it shall not, by way of trade or otherwise, be lent,
re-sold, hired out, or otherwise circulated without the publisher's prior consent in any form or
binding or cover other than that in which it is published and without a similar condition
including this condition being imposed on the subsequent purchaser.

www.triestepublishing.com



VARIOUS

EDINBURGH UNIVERSITY;
A SKETCH OF ITS LIFE
FOR 300 YEARS

ﬁTrieste






EDINBURGH UNIVERSITY:
A Shetch of its Ly’e. frar_ 300 YEIEIT'S.

EDINBIRGH ;
JAMES GEMMELL, CEORGE IV, BRIDGE

1884,







LY.
V-
VL
VIL
VIIL

X

XIL
XITI.
X1v.

CONTENTS.

. Foundation of the Toww's Colleue, - - -
IL
111

The Disputation al Stirling, " -

The First Rector, - B - - -~
Alexander Henderson, - - ) .
Archbishop Leighlon, - - - -
Dewn of Medical Bchool, - - - -
The Revolation Period, -

Willisn Cargtaras ; Firsk Law Chatr; Regents
beeome Profesaors;, - -

The Medieal School and the Royal Infirmary
% Jupiter * Carlvle ; Oliver Goldsmaith, -

. William Robertzon end his brilliant Senatus, -
. New Buildings on South Bridge ; Dr Johnson :

Thirty Years' War ; The Act of 1858, -
Prosperity of the University ainoe its re-constitntion,
The Tercentenary Celebrations, : . -
Btudents' Hocietiog, - - - - -

28

HE
48

64
86
92






EDINBURGH UNIVERSITY:

A SKETOH OF ITS LIFE FOR 300 YEARS.

I ROBERT ROLLOCEK, Prinaipsl—1683-1689.

RY soon after the Reformation the question of founding a
College in Edinburgh began to ongago the attention of
the Town Council and city ministers, In this they probably
had many motives, It was partly zeal for the epread of educa-
tion, pertly & natural wish to bave their young men educated
according to the mew ways, in an institution over which they
should have eontral, and by teachers in whom they should have
confidence, It was manifestly, too, for the advantage of the
youth of the eity to have such a College at home, where they
could get » high edvcation without the inconvenience and
expense of a residence at 5t Andrews, Glasgow, or Aberdeon,
The ohstacles in the way of the founders were many and
difficult to overcome, Queen Mary naturally did not look with
favour on the proposed establishment of a Reformars’ Collegs ;
the Bishops, who were Chancellors of the existing Universities
of Bt Andrews, Glasgow, and Aberdeen, used all their influence
in Church and Btate against the new and rival scheme ; while
perhaps the grentest difficulty of all was the founders' lack of
funds. To remedy this, they petitioned Cueen Mary for grants
from the confiscated church revenves and for a site, but
without snceess. In 1568, however, wo find them agreeing to
pay £1000 Seots to John Pennyeuick, Provost of the Collegiate
Church of St Mary in the Fields, for the site and ruined '
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buildings of this cnce great religions honse, This bargain does
not seem to have been carried ont, na two Provosts, Balfour and
Gib, eucceadad Pennyeuick, and it was not till 1581 that, as
Craufurd, the earliest historian of the College, tells us, “ they
purchased of John Gib and John Fenton their right to the
Kirk ¢ Field, to be a place for the situation of the intended
College.”

This, the seene of Darnley’s tragie fate, is the site of the pre-
zent College, on the South Bridge. The house which was
blewn up on the night of 10th February 1567, waz afterwards
repaired and used as the dwelling of the Prineipsl Dalze],
writing in 18038, says it still existed, The Library now covers
ita sits.

The triumph of the anti-Episcopal party in the Church in
1580, clearcd the way for the foundation of the new College.
The Town Council gained thelr point, with the szealous
assistance of James DLawson, successor to Knex as chief
minister of Edinburgh, and pnother eity minister, Walter
Balcanquall, father of Herlot's executor, the Dean of Rochester.
After buying out the King's creatures, thay began in a humble
way to prepare buildings for their new College. 'With the seanty
funde at their command, it was necessary ihet they should
utilize a3 far as possibls existing structures on the ground.
They accordingly began to enclose these within a wall, which
incuded an irregnlar pile near the Kirk o Field, which
the Duke of Chatelherault had built on the site of an hospital
that Somerset’s Englishmen bad burned down after Pinkie fight.
This wns the town housa of the Duke until the forfeiture of the
Hamiltons, when the Town Counecil bought it. It was after-
wards the cause of much litigation, for the Hamiltons on their
restoration laid claim to it, and the Council had to repurchase it
in 1613, for £3000. This building occcupied the eite of the
contre of the north side of the present quadrangle.

Meanwhils, as the patched up and motley pile of buildings
was being prepared, the Council applied to King James VI, for
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a Charter for their infant College,  This document was signed
by the King at Stirling, on the T4th of April 1582, Among its
other provisions it conferred on the Council and city ministers
the entire contrel of higher edueation in the city, and in this
respect as well azin many others, the new Town's College differed
from the three older foundations, each of which was an
tmperium in imperio, with valuable privileges and immunities
from eivil control.

In the middls of 1683 the Cellege buildings were ready for
occupation, and it becanre necessery for the Council to appoint
an instructor for the expected students,  On the recommenda-~
tion of Mr James Lawson, they fized oan Roperr RoLLOCK, a
young man of good family, who was then a Regent of Philosophy
at St Andrews, a ripe scholer, an excellent organiser, and s man
held in the highest esteem for his pure personal character.

Rollock accepted the invitation of the Couneil, and began, in
the lower hall of Hamilton House, tha lectures of his firat
geszion, in October 1588, to a large clase of stodents, who had
been attranted to the infant Collegs by his great reputation,

Very acon, however, he became sensible of a difficulty that
has nover ceased to be manifest to all his successors in Beottish
Chairs,—the insufficient preliminary educstion of meny of his
etudents, Latin then was not only in iteslf an important
branch of a Biberal education, but was s part of the indispensahle
equipment of & atudent. It was the umiversal medium of
communication smong the learned, the lsnguage in which
College Lecturea were delivered, and which the stndents were
required to use, not only in the class-room, but everywhere
within the bounds of the College.

Rollock found many of his stndents very imperfectly
acquainted with Latin, and accordingly, on his advice, the Town
Council appointed Davip Naiay to be gecond Regent, with the
special duty of preparing the beckward students in Latin, s0
that they might be found qualified for entrance to the regular
course in the following session. The infant College thus started



